
Adopted Minutes 
Spanish Fork City Planning Commission Meeting 

November 4, 2009 
 
 
Commission Members Present:  Chairman Michael Christianson, Del Robins, 
Shane Marshall, Rick Evans. 
 
Staff Present:  Dave Anderson, Planning Director; Shelley Hendrickson, 
Planning Secretary; Kirk Nord, Assistant City Attorney. 
 
Citizens Present: Mara Grover, Robert Grover, John Coxson, Adam Ricks, Isaac 
Pendleton, Jacob Savage, Nate Hanson, Bjorn Pendleton, Steve Maddox.  
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
Chairman Christianson called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m.   
 
 
PRELIMINARY ACTIVITIES 
 

Pledge 
 
Commissioner Marshall led the Pledge of Allegiance. 
 

Adoption of Minutes:  October 7, 2009  
 
Commissioner Robins moved to approve the minutes of October 7, 2009, with 
the noted corrections.  Commissioner Marshall seconded and the motion 
passed all in favor. 
 
Commissioner Robins moved to open into public hearing.  Commissioner 
Marshall seconded and the motion passed all in favor at 6:03 p.m. 
 
 
PUBLIC HEARING 
 
Bella Vista Zone Change 
Applicant:  Steve Maddox 
General Plan:  Residential 5.5 to 8 units per acre 
Zoning:  R-3, R-1-6 and Rural Residential 
Location: approximately 900 North State Road 51 
 

Planning Commission Draft Minutes     Page 1 of  6 11-04-09 
 



Mr. Anderson said he would be discussing both the zone change and the 
preliminary plat in tandem.  He explained the current zoning of the property was 
R-3, R-1-6 and Rural Residential and the General Plan designation was 5.5-8 
units per acre.  He said that the applicant was requesting R-1-6 zoning, and that 
this proposed density was at the low end of what the general plan allowed and 
that due to the unique characteristics of the property (the presence of a 
substantial gas line, railroad tracks and highway) City staff felt comfortable 
approving the R-1-6 zoning.  Mr. Anderson explained the Preliminary Plat 
approval was for a Master Planned Development.  The proposed Master Planned 
Development would be exclusively single-family detached homes and that there 
would be 100 building lots in all but one lot which already exists with a 
residential treatment center.  Mr. Anderson explained that some of the lots 
would be as little as 4,000 square feet with other lots being much larger than 
that.  He said that under the Master Planned Development section of the 
Municipal Code that a waiver could be granted for the smaller lot size and that 
the City Council would need to approve the waiver in order for this development 
to be approved.  Mr. Anderson said he felt that in canvassing Utah County, you 
would not find a lot of developments built on small lots, but in other states single 
family detached homes on smaller lots are very common.  He said he felt that 
the key to success for this type of development was to build a quality home out 
of the gate, landscaping, fencing and maintenance.  He said City staff’s concerns 
were related to maintenance and felt the applicant had addressed the concerns 
head on.  He said the exterior product of the homes would be all masonry and 
that the applicant was proffering a three acre parcel of land to be dedicated to 
the city for a park.  He said that the applicant would be required to construct the 
park to the City’s park standards and that the applicant had met with the City’s 
Parks and Recreation Department.  He explained the phasing plan of the 
development and how it would affect the construction of the park.  
 
Commissioner Marshall asked how enforceable CC & R’s were and if the City was 
involved in CC & R’s.  Mr. Anderson explained how CC & R’s work, that they were 
a civil issue and that the City did not get involved in the enforcement of CC & 
R’s. 
 
Chairman Christianson asked what the City was agreeing to pay for the park.  
Mr. Anderson said that the applicant was going to pay for 100 percent of the 
construction of the park.  He said that City staff understood that there was not a 
final design for the park that was acceptable to the City but that there would 
need to be a final design before a final plat is approved. 
 
Chairman Christianson asked about the three detention basins and asked if the 
maintenance of the basins would be the City’s responsibility or common space 
that would be the responsibility of the Homeowner’s Association (HOA).  Mr. 
Anderson said it was his understanding that it would be both.  The HOA would 

Planning Commission Draft Minutes     Page 2 of  6 11-04-09 
 



maintain the turf but the City would maintain the storm drain portion of the 
retention basin. 
 
Chairman Christianson asked what the City’s setbacks were between the lot that 
already existed that the residential treatment center was located on and the 
proposed lot that would abut it.  Mr. Maddox said that it was his understanding 
that the lots met the City’s setback requirements but that if for some reason they 
did not he would rectify the issue.   
 
Chairman Christianson invited the applicant to speak. 
 
Steve Maddox 
Mr. Maddox said he would address the park portion of the development and 
explained that he had met with the City Parks and Recreation Department.  Mr. 
Maddox explained what they had agreed upon, which involved spending more 
money on hardscape.  He said they were still in the stages of designing a fence 
because he wanted a more open feel but was met with opposition from City staff 
who felt that people want privacy and did not want an entourage of fencing.  He 
then explained how he felt about CC & R’s are that the keys to CC & R’s were 
setting the bar high at the beginning, education and enforcement.   
 
Commissioner Robins asked Mr. Maddox if, in his experience, maintaining CC & 
R’s had to be pushed to the legal limit.  Mr. Maddox said he had not had to go 
that far.  He said that education was key. 
 
Discussion was held regarding HOA’s, how they work and enforcement of CC & 
R’s . 
 
Commissioner Robins asked about wetlands.  Mr. Maddox said he will leave it in 
its natural vegetation.   
 
Mr. Maddox explained the gas line easement. 
 
Chairman Christianson asked about Residential Treatment Center and whether it 
is legal conforming or non-conforming use.  Mr. Anderson said that the 
treatment center was already zoned R-1-6 and was a non-conforming use and 
the vested status would not change. 
 
Commissioner Evans asked Mr. Maddox if he was comfortable with agreeing to 
construct a park to the City’s standards without a final design.  Mr. Maddox said 
that he was because he had met with the Parks Department.  He said the price 
point was the playground equipment but felt he was in a comfort zone.  Mr. 
Maddox asked if he could construct the park along with the third phase of the 
development and not be allowed to pull a building permit on the fourth phase 

Planning Commission Draft Minutes     Page 3 of  6 11-04-09 
 



until the park was finished instead of constructing the park before building 
permits are issued on the third phase. 
 
Mr. Anderson said that the City would like a clear trigger for when the park 
would be constructed and that was the reason for the condition that the park be 
constructed along with the public utilities.   
 
Discussion was held regarding the phasing plan, the park and whether or not the 
applicant could take more time to construct it. 
 
Commissioner Marshall asked about road width and when the City uses the 
different widths.  Mr. Anderson explained the streets in the project that would 
qualify for certain widths. 
 
Chairman Christianson invited public comment. 
 
Avante Custio 
Ms. Custio expressed concern with the lot size.  She said she feels it is too small.  
She also expressed concern with maintenance and wetlands.   
 
Commissioner Robins explained the history on the project. 
 
Mr. Maddox said he had met on site with the Army Core of Engineers and that 
they had discovered four illegal wells that have since been capped and the 
ground is now dry.  He then explained that he had the ability to maintain the 
project through an HOA and, if it was done correctly and enforced, he said it 
would look better than the traditional subdivision. 
 
Robert Gowan 
Mr. Gowan requested to see the park plans.  He expressed concern with the 
north edge and the drop in topography.  He asked how it would be addressed.  
Chairman Christianson explained that a survey would be done to know what level 
of fill would need to be addressed.  Mr. Maddox said that a six foot vinyl fence 
would be installed on the north end of the project. 
 
Commissioner Robins moved to recommend to the City Council approval of the 
R-1-6 zone change based on the following finding: 
 
Finding 
 

1. That the proposed zoning is consistent with the General Plan. 
 
Commissioner Marshall seconded and the motion passed all in favor by a roll 
call vote. 
 

Planning Commission Draft Minutes     Page 4 of  6 11-04-09 
 



Commissioner Marshall moved to close public hearing.  Commissioner Evans 
seconded and the motion passed all in favor at 7:01 p.m. 
 
STAFF REPORTS 
 
Bella Vista Preliminary Plat 
Applicant:  Steve Maddox 
General Plan:  Residential 5.5 to 8 units per acre 
Zoning:  R-3, R-1-6 and Rural Residential 
Location: approximately 900 North State Road 51 
 
Commissioner Robins moved to recommend to the City Council approval of the 
Bella Vista Preliminary Plat based on the following finding and subject to the 
following conditions: 
 
Finding 
 

1. That the proposed Preliminary Plat conforms to the City’s requirements for 
Master Planned Developments in the R-1-6 zone. 

 
Conditions 
 

1. That a design of the park be completed as part of the final plat review 
process on the project’s first phase. 

2. That the applicant dedicate the park land with the first phase. 
3. That the applicant bond for a proportionate share of the park construction 

with the second and third phases. 
4. That the park be constructed as part of the third phase. 
5. That all of the landscaping that is visible from a public right-of-way be 

installed at the time of development or at the time homes are 
constructed. 

 
Commissioner Evans seconded and the motion passed all in favor by a roll call 
vote. 
 
OTHER DISCUSSION 
 
Discussion on Planning Commission work program 
 
Commissioner Robins asked if it was worth pursuing HOA’s, if any exist within 
the City and what can be done.  Discussion was held regarding HOA’s and 
fencing. 
 
 
 

Planning Commission Draft Minutes     Page 5 of  6 11-04-09 
 



Planning Commission Draft Minutes     Page 6 of  6 11-04-09 
 

ADJOURNMENT 
 
Commissioner Evans moved to adjourn.  Commissioner Robins seconded and 
the motion passed all in favor at 7:23 p.m. 
 
Adopted:  December 2, 2009 

________________________________ 
     Shelley Hendrickson, Planning Secretary   
    


